
- 1 - 

 
BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 
MONDAY 14TH JUNE 2010, AT 6.00 P.M. 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE, BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 
MEMBERS: Councillors C. B. Taylor (Chairman), Mrs. M. Bunker (Vice-

Chairman), S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths 
and Ms. H. J. Jones 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1. To receive apologies for absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance 
Management Board held on 17th May 2010 (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

4. Performance Report (April 2010) (Pages 5 - 24) 
 

5. Shared Services Highlight Report (Pages 25 - 32) 
 

6. Work Programme (Pages 33 - 40) 
 

7. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, considers to be of so urgent a nature that it cannot wait until 
the next meeting  



- 2 - 

 
 K. DICKS 

Chief Executive  
The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
4th June 2010 
 



 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

MONDAY, 17TH MAY 2010 AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors  Mrs. M. Bunker, S. R. Colella, Mrs. A. E. Doyle, 
Mrs. J. M. L. A. Griffiths, Ms. H. J. Jones (during Minute No’s 1/10 to 8/10) 
and C. B. Taylor 
 

 Observers: Councillor L. J. Turner 
 

 Officers: Mr. H. Bennett and Ms. A. Scarce 
 

 
 

1/10 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor C. B. Taylor be elected Chairman of the Board for 
the ensuing municipal year. 
 

2/10 ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Mrs. M. Bunker be elected Vice-Chairman of the 
Board for the ensuing municipal year. 
 

3/10 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  It was noted that a nomination to the 
Board had not yet been received from the Labour Group. 
 

4/10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

5/10 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 
19th April 2010 were submitted. 
 
Members were advised by the Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships (PPP) that officers would be made aware of the Lean Systems 
process (as noted in Minute No. 95/09) at the Management Forum, which 
would be held shortly. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Performance Management Board 
17th May 2010 

 

 
6/10 PERFORMANCE REPORT (MARCH 2010)  

 
The Board considered the Performance Report for March 2010.  Members 
noted that there was a 9% decrease in the percentage of performance 
indicators that had met their target at the year end.  After discussion it was 
agreed that the Director of PPP would investigate this and include his findings 
in the Performance Report for the Board meeting on 14th June 2010. 
 
The Board gave particular consideration to the Dolphin Centre usage which 
had been highlighted as an area of potential concern in the report.  The 
Director of PPP confirmed that the management of the Dolphin Centre had 
been transferred to the Leisure Trust with effect from 1st April 2010 and 
Members agreed that it would be useful to receive further information on 
performance indicators, pre and post handover.  After further discussion it was 
agreed that the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services, together with the 
Portfolio Holder for Community Services be invited to a future meeting of the 
Board, to provide a report and feedback on this item. 
 
Members shared their concern over the total value of Housing Benefit 
overpayments outstanding at the start of the quarter.  After discussion it was 
agreed that the Director of PPP would provide a more detailed explanation of 
this item together with a comparative figure for the previous year, in the 
Performance Report for the Board meeting on 14th June 2010. 
 
The Board discussed item SC4, Sports Development Usage and were advised 
that a review of Sports Development had been included in the Scrutiny Board 
Work Programme and the Scrutiny Board would receive an initial report from 
the Head of Leisure and Cultural Services in the autumn. 
 
The Director of PPP confirmed that the Head of Environmental Services and 
the Portfolio Holder for Community Services would be asked to provide a 
Lessons Learnt Report in respect of the implementation of the new recycling 
arrangements for presentation to the Board meeting to be held on 14th June 
2010. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that it be noted that 49% of performance indicators are stable or 

improving; 
(b) that it be noted that 69% of performance indicators that have a target 

have met their target at the year end (compared to 78% in 2008/09); 
(c) that the performance figures for March 2010 as set out in Appendix 2 

are noted; 
(d) that the particular areas of improvement as summarised in section 4.2 

are noted; and 
(e) that the performance indicators of particular concern as set out in 

section 4.3 are noted. 

Page 2



Performance Management Board 
17th May 2010 

 

 
7/10 IMPROVEMENT PLAN EXCEPTION REPORT (MARCH 2010)  

 
The Board considered the Improvement Plan Exception Report for March 
2010 and discussed the following items in more detail: 
 

Ø Progress made in the Council’s move from a “fair” to an “excellent” 
Council. 

Ø The Budget Jury which would be reinstated this year. 
Ø Bromsgrove Way training – which had been suspended due to a 

revised approach being put forward. 
Ø Employee health and wellbeing programme 
Ø Planning and in particular Ref. 13.2.3 Receive and respond to RSS2 

Proposed Changes and the delay that had taken place in publishing the 
changes. 

 
The Board also discussed Ref. 1.5 the Railway Station and were informed that 
representatives from both Worcestershire County Council (WCC) and Network 
Rail had been invited to attend a recent Overview Board meeting, but had 
declined.  The Overview Board was making further investigations into this 
issue and Members of the Performance Management Board agreed that if the 
relevant representatives were to attend a future Overview Board meeting, they 
would welcome an invitation to attend that meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
(a) that the revisions to the Improvement Plan Exception Report together 

with the corrective action being taken are noted; and 
(b) that it be noted that for the 85 actions highlighted for March within the 

plan 67.1% of the Improvement Plan was on target (green), 4.7% was 
one month behind (amber) and 3.5% was over one month behind (red).  
24.7% of actions have been reprogrammed or suspended with 
approval. 

 
8/10 SHARED SERVICES HIGHLIGHT REPORT  

 
The Board considered the Shared Services Highlight Report and was advised 
by the Director of PPP that the Burcot Room would be used to host Regulatory 
Services for efficiency purposes rather than from an income earning 
perspective. 
 
With regard to the Financial Implications section of the report and the delivery 
of savings, the Director of PPP confirmed that the Selby approach to reporting 
income and savings targets had been adopted and the Board would receive 
the appropriate report for Quarter 1 at a future meeting. 
 
The Board also discussed the transfer of staff into the direct employment of 
both Redditch and Bromsgrove Councils and the change of contract 
implications which arose from these transfers. 
 
RESOLVED that the Shared Services Highlight Report be noted. 
 

Page 3



Performance Management Board 
17th May 2010 

 

9/10 WORK PROGRAMME  
 
Members considered the Work Programme and agreed that the following 
items should be included within the Work Programme: 
 

Ø An evaluation of the pilot Mosaic scheme 
Ø Budget management - Quarter 1 Outturn Report 
Ø Staff Survey results  

 
RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted, subject to the inclusion of 
the items mentioned above. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 7.20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14 JUNE 2010  
 

 

APRIL (PERIOD 1) PERFORMANCE REPORTING 
 
Relevant Portfolio Holder  Cllr Roger Hollingworth 
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett, Director of Policy, 

Performance and Partnerships 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1 To report to Performance Management Board  on the Council’s 

performance at 30 April 2010 (period 1). 
  
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 That The Board notes the changes to the corporately reported PI set and 

the changes to the structure of the report as described in section 3.3.    
 
2.2  That The Board notes that 56% of PI’s where information is available 

have met or their monthly target in April. 
 
2.3 That The Board notes the performance figures for March 2010 as set out 

in Appendix 2.  
 
2.4 That The Board notes the particular areas of improvement as summarised 

in section 4.2. 
 
2.5 That The Board notes the PI’s of particular concern as set out in section 

4.3. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The full list of performance indicators due to be reported monthly is set out 

in Appendix 2 where:-  
 

 On Target  I Performance is Improving 
 Less than 10% from target  S Performance is Stable 
 More than 10% from target  W Performance is Worsening 
 No target set  N/a No target set 

 
3.2  Comparisons of overall performance improvements this month to last 

month are shown on Appendix 1.  As this is the first month of the new 
financial year summary figures for this month only are shown in this 
Appendix this time. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14 JUNE 2010  
 

 

 
3.3  The set of corporately reported PI’s has been revised to ensure they reflect 

current priorities and also to take account of the revised assessment 
methodology that the Council will be judged on under CAA.  The revised set 
of PI’s was proposed in the Council Plan.  The format of the report remains 
the same but the order in which performance indicators are reported has 
changed.  Indicators are grouped under the new Shared Services 
departments that are responsible for each PI.  As this is the first report of 
the new financial year and because of the changes to the PI set then for this 
month the usual reporting as to whether performance is Improving, Stable or 
Worsening (the I,S,W analysis) is not reported.  This will resume in the May 
performance report when it will be possible to compare performance in May 
to that in April.    

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 The proportion of PI’s that have met their monthly target is low, at 56%, 26%  
      of indicators have missed their monthly target by more than 10%.           
 
4.2 There is no performance worthy of particular mention this month.  
 
4.3 As this is the first month of the year it is too early to raise concerns about  

whether specific indicators might not meet their annual target.  However, in 
general terms, the proportion of PI’s that have not met their April target (44%) 
is not a good start to the new financial year.  Whether this is a temporary ‘blip’ 
or is cause for concern will begin to become clearer when figures for May are 
available. 

 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 None 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None 
 
7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 None 
 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 

Page 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14 JUNE 2010  
 

 

8.1 Performance reporting & management links to the Improvement objective 
  
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
9.1The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 
•  Data quality problems  
•  Poor performance 
 

9.2 These risks are being managed as follows:  
 
•  Implementation of the Data Quality Strategy 
•   Robust follow up on performance issues, including performance clinics 

 
9.3 There are no Health & Safety considerations 
 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Performance Improvement is a Council Objective 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 None   
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1  None 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
14.1 None 
 
15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
15.1 Sound performance management and data quality are key to achieving 

improved scores in the Use of resources judgement.  This performance 
report supports that aim. 

Page 7



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14 JUNE 2010  
 

 

 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
16.1 None 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
17.1 None 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1   
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1  None 
 
 
 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No  

Chief Executive 
 

No (annual leave) 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Yes (at CMT) 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Yes (at CMT) 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Yes (at CMT) 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes (at CMT) 

Head of Service 
 

Yes (at CMT) 

Head of Resources  
  

Yes (at CMT) 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 

Yes (at CMT) 

Page 8



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14 JUNE 2010  
 

 

 
Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All 
  
22. APPENDICES 
  
Appendix 1  Performance Summary for the period  
Appendix 2    Detail Performance report for the period  
Appendix 3   Detailed figures to support the performance report 
 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

None  
 

24. KEY 
 
PI     -  Performance Indicator  
NI     -  National Indicator ( a PI defined by government and used by all Councils) 
LPI   -  Local Performance Indicator – (a PI defined by Bromsgrove, District  
            Council to measure performance on local priorities)  
CAA -  Corporate Area Assessment – the methodology used by the Audit    
   Commission to judge the performance of Councils and partners 
  
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name: John Outhwaite, Senior Policy & Performance Officer 
email: j.outhwaite@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel: (01527) 881602 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



No. %age3 No. %age3

Improving or stable. n/a On target 19 56%
Declining n/a Missing target by less than 10% 6 18%
No data n/a Missing target by more than 10% 9 26%

No data2 6

Total Number of Indicators 
reported this period1 0

Total Number of Indicators 
reported this period1 40

Notes
1 - This figure shows the total number of indicators reported in Appendix 2 for this period.  This will vary as some indicators are reported monthly, 
     some quarterly, some annually (but in different periods - depending on when they become available).
2 - Some of the indicators do not have all the performance elements, for instance some do not have tar
    are activity measures (e.g. monthly call volume).  These indicators will be included in the 'no data' count where comparisons cannot be made.
3 - The percentage figure shown is the percentage of the number of indicators for which relevant data is available this period, not 
     the total number of indicators reported this period.

SUMMARY - Period 1 (April) 20010/11 
Monthly (April)  performance

Page 11



APPENDIX 1 

No. %age3

On target 31 89%
Missing target by less than 10% 4 11%
Missing target by more than 10% 0 0%
No data2 5

Total Number of Indicators reported 
this period1 40

l vary as some indicators are reported monthly, 
t periods - depending on when they become available).
ormance elements, for instance some do not have targets because they are new indicators this year, others 

ta' count where comparisons cannot be made.
f the number of indicators for which relevant data is available this period, not 

Estimated Outturn

Page 12



 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 P
er

io
d

 0
1 

(A
p

ri
l 2

01
0)

 

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
(K

G
)

M
C

58
1.

13
47

.5
5

52
.8

9
57

8.
00

57
8.

00

T
ra

de
 w

as
te

 fi
gu

re
s 

no
t y

et
 r

ec
ei

ve
d.

 
O

nl
y 

gl
as

s 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ba
nk

 fi
gu

re
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 d
ue

 to
 e

ar
ly

 c
al

l d
at

e 
fo

r 
da

ta
. 

Li
ke

ly
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

to
 5

0.
3 

br
in

gi
ng

 th
is

 in
 

be
tte

r 
th

an
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

m
on

th

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

M
C

37
.4

44
.0

9
40

.2
7

40
.0

0
40

.0
0

T
ra

de
 w

as
te

 fi
gu

re
s 

no
t y

et
 r

ec
ei

ve
d.

 
O

nl
y 

gl
as

s 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ba
nk

 fi
gu

re
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 d
ue

 to
 e

ar
ly

 c
al

l d
at

e 
fo

r 
da

ta
. 

Li
ke

ly
 to

 in
cr

ea
se

 to
 4

1%
 th

er
ef

or
e 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
fig

ur
e 

ev
en

 m
or

e

N
um

be
r 

of
 m

is
se

d 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

M
C

11
07

12
5

16
7

1,
50

0
1,

50
0

86
 m

is
se

d 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
, 5

0 
m

is
se

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

co
lle

ct
io

ns
, 3

1 
m

is
se

d 
ga

rd
en

 w
as

te

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

U
sa

ge
 (

av
 p

er
 

m
on

th
)

M
S

12
6,

92
8 

(a
ve

)
12

6,
87

5
12

5,
92

9
>1

26
,8

75
 

>1
26

,8
75

 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 b

el
ow

 ta
rg

et

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s

T
ot

al
 C

rim
e

M
C

51
87

43
3

48
5

5,
26

6
5,

31
8

T
ot

al
 C

rim
e 

is
 s

lig
ht

ly
 o

ff 
ta

rg
et

.  
H

ig
h 

V
ol

um
e 

cr
im

e 
ty

pe
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 V

io
le

nt
 

C
rim

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

st
ra

te
gi

es
 to

 ta
ck

le
.  

P
le

as
e 

se
e 

co
m

m
en

ta
ry

 b
el

ow
 fo

r 
V

io
le

nt
 C

rim
e.

  W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 c
oo

rd
in

at
in

g 
w

or
k 

to
 d

ea
l 

w
ith

 d
is

or
de

r 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

W
or

ld
 C

up
 a

nd
 

on
go

in
g 

w
or

k 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

cr
im

e 
at

 
be

au
ty

 s
po

ts
.

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 
M

C
32

1
30

25
37

0
36

5

D
om

es
tic

 B
ur

gl
ar

y 
w

ith
in

 B
ro

m
sg

ro
ve

 is
 

on
 ta

rg
et

 -
 h

ow
ev

er
 w

or
k 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

m
on

ito
r 

kn
ow

n 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

w
ith

 d
om

es
tic

 
bu

rg
la

ry
 h

ab
its

. 

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

1

Page 13



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

M
C

10
46

88
10

7
1,

03
8

1,
05

7

V
io

le
nt

 C
rim

e 
co

nt
in

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
of

f t
ar

ge
t 

an
d 

is
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

 to
 d

om
es

tic
 r

el
at

ed
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
an

d 
A

B
H

 c
on

ne
ct

ed
 to

 th
e 

N
ig

ht
 

T
im

e 
E

co
no

m
y 

- 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

ct
io

ns
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

hi
ch

 w
e 

ho
pe

 to
 

se
e 

th
e 

be
ne

fit
 o

f s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

to
 b

ui
ld

 a
 

sm
ok

in
g 

ar
ea

 to
 th

e 
re

ar
 o

f t
he

 L
ov

e 
to

 
Lo

ve
 n

ig
ht

cl
ub

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 ta

xi
 

ra
nk

s.
  A

 D
om

es
tic

 V
io

le
nc

e 
pr

of
ile

 h
as

 
ju

st
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
D

om
es

tic
 V

io
le

nc
e 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 to
 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
lo

ca
l p

ro
je

ct
 to

 ta
ck

le
 th

is
 

is
su

e.

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

M
C

44
4

6
54

56

S
lig

ht
ly

 o
ff 

ta
rg

et
 b

ut
 o

f l
ow

 q
ua

nt
ity

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
.  

H
ow

ev
er

 e
ac

h 
ro

bb
er

y 
of

fe
nc

e 
is

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 a

s 
pr

io
rit

y 
of

fe
nc

e 
by

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

de
al

t w
ith

 a
cc

or
di

ng
ly

. 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 
M

C
67

2
55

47
66

4
65

6

V
eh

ic
le

 C
rim

e 
is

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
A

pr
il 

is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

he
 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 O

pe
ra

tio
n 

E
ve

re
st

 -
 w

hi
ch

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 h

ig
h 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
pr

es
en

ce
 a

t b
ea

ut
y 

sp
ot

 c
ar

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ai
si

ng
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
to

 
se

cu
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
an

d 
re

m
ov

e 
va

lu
ab

le
s.

  
A

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
is

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
no

 
of

fe
nc

es
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
E

as
te

r 
w

ee
ke

nd
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
 n

ot
or

io
us

ly
 b

ad
 w

ee
ke

nd
 fo

r 
of

fe
nc

es
.  

W
or

k 
is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 to

 e
xt

en
d 

th
is

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

su
m

m
er

 
m

on
th

s.
 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 C

rim
in

al
 D

am
ag

e 
In

ci
de

nt
s 

M
C

90
8

74
64

89
0

88
0

C
rim

in
al

 D
am

ag
e 

is
 a

ls
o 

on
 ta

rg
et

 d
ue

 to
 

hi
gh

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 p

re
se

nc
e 

in
 k

ey
 w

ar
ds

.  
H

is
to

ric
al

ly
 c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
of

fe
nc

es
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
to

 p
ub

lic
 p

ro
pe

rt
y,

 fe
nc

es
 a

nd
 

gr
af

fit
i. 

 T
he

re
 is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 w
or

k 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

af
et

y 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 to

 ta
ck

le
 

th
es

e 
is

su
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

n 
E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l C

rim
e 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.

M
on

th
ly

 S
ho

pm
ob

ili
ty

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge
 

M
S

14
4 

(a
ve

)
16

0
14

1
16

0
16

0
2

Page 14



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

C
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t u

sa
ge

s
M

C
n/

a
14

0
n/

a
n/

a
16

80
16

80
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
no

t y
et

 a
va

ila
bl

e

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

  -
 n

ew
 c

us
to

m
er

s
M

S
18

20
21

5
21

5
M

os
t r

ef
er

ra
ls

 th
is

 m
on

th
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
th

ou
gh

 w
or

d 
of

 m
ou

th
.

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

  -
 L

ea
ve

rs
M

S
12

9
13

7
13

7
5 

S
er

vi
ce

 U
se

rs
 p

as
se

d 
aw

ay
, 2

 w
en

t i
nt

o 
nu

rs
in

g 
ho

m
es

 a
nd

 2
 h

av
e 

pr
ol

on
ge

d 
ho

sp
ita

l s
ta

ys
.

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

  -
 n

et
 g

ai
n

M
S

6
11

78
78

A
 n

et
 g

ai
n 

of
 1

1 
cu

st
om

er
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 a
 g

oo
d 

st
ar

t t
o 

th
e 

ye
ar

.

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

  -
 to

ta
l p

riv
at

e 
di

sp
er

sa
ls

M
S

6
11

78
78

A
 n

et
 g

ai
n 

of
 1

1 
cu

st
om

er
s 

w
ith

ou
t 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 a
 g

oo
d 

st
ar

t t
o 

th
e 

ye
ar

.

N
um

be
r 

of
 li

fe
lin

e 
ca

lls
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

M
S

60
7

61
2

67
9

67
9

T
hi

s 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ov
e.

%
 o

f l
ife

lin
e 

ca
lls

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
 

m
in

ut
e

M
S

98
.5

0%
99

.9
4%

98
.5

0
98

.5
0

T
he

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 9
8.

5%
 is

 a
 n

at
io

na
lly

 
re

co
gn

is
ed

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

 s
et

 b
y 

th
e 

T
el

ec
ar

e 
In

du
st

ry
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

C
T

V
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 
m

ea
su

re
)

M
C

n/
a

31
5

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

A
ct

iv
ity

 M
ea

su
re

%
 o

f C
C

T
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g
M

C
n/

a
60

n/
a

n/
a 

(b
as

el
in

e 
in

 
10

/1
1)

n/
a

n/
a

B
as

el
in

e

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

C
T

V
 e

vi
de

nt
ia

l s
ei

zu
re

s
M

C
n/

a
33

n/
a

n/
a 

(b
as

el
in

e 
in

 
10

/1
1)

n/
a

n/
a

B
as

el
in

e

L
ei

su
re

 &
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s

N
um

be
r 

of
 lo

ca
lly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

di
ve

rs
io

na
ry

 s
es

si
on

s
M

C
16

3
16

30
18

5
18

5
T

ar
ge

t e
xc

ee
de

d 
du

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
H

ol
id

ay
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oa

hi
ng

 S
es

si
on

s 
an

d 
W

ee
kl

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
oo

tb
al

l S
es

si
on

.

N
um

be
rs

 o
f u

se
rs

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
M

C
61

7
56

64
72

0
72

0
T

ar
ge

t e
xc

ee
de

d 
du

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 
H

ol
id

ay
 C

om
m

un
ity

 C
oa

hi
ng

 S
es

si
on

s 
an

d 
W

ee
kl

y 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
oo

tb
al

l S
es

si
on

.

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

M
C

23
,7

28
91

10
0

25
,7

50
25

,7
50

W
e 

ha
ve

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
A

pr
il 

ta
rg

et
. 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

hi
nd

ig
 fi

gu
re

s 
ar

e 
m

is
si

ng
 

du
e 

to
 s

ta
ff 

si
ck

ne
ss

, b
ut

 w
ill

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
at

 
a 

la
te

r 
da

te
. T

he
re

fo
re

 a
ct

ua
l f

ig
ur

e 
w

ill
 

in
cr

ea
se

.  
G

oo
d 

w
ea

th
er

 a
t S

t G
eo

rg
es

 
D

ay
 E

ve
nt

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
ed

 to
 s

uc
ce

ss
fu

l t
ur

n 
ou

t. 
3

Page 15



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

D
ol

ph
in

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge
M

C
41

5,
40

7
34

,0
56

34
,3

01
41

3,
00

0
41

3,
00

0
D

ol
ph

in
 C

en
tr

e 
us

ag
e 

fig
ur

e 
ha

s 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

th
e 

m
on

th
 o

f A
pr

il.

S
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t u

sa
ge

s
M

C
30

,0
95

1,
96

6
2,

06
0

30
,6

00
30

,6
00

T
ar

ge
t e

xc
ee

de
d 

du
e 

to
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 r

eg
ul

ar
 p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

P
S

P
, M

ob
ili

ty
, C

om
m

un
ity

 S
es

si
on

s 
an

d 
al

so
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 H

ol
id

ay
 

A
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

t t
he

 E
as

te
r 

pe
rio

d.

F
in

an
ce

 &
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

N
I1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T

 b
en

ef
it 

ne
w

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

 (
da

ys
)

M
C

9.
12

12
.0

0
19

.6
1

12
12

.0
0

T
he

re
 w

as
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ta
ff 

on
 le

av
e 

du
rin

g 
A

pr
il 

du
e 

to
 E

as
te

r 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

 
ho

lid
ay

s.
  I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
is

 th
er

e 
is

 m
or

e 
in

co
m

in
g 

po
st

 th
an

 u
su

al
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

on
th

s 
of

 F
eb

, M
ar

ch
 a

nd
 A

pr
il 

m
ea

ni
ng

 
th

e 
w

or
kl

oa
d 

ha
s 

in
cr

ea
se

d.
  W

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 h

av
e 

a 
sl

ig
ht

 b
ac

kl
og

 th
at

 s
ha

ll 
be

 a
dd

re
ss

 b
y 

of
fe

rin
g 

st
af

f o
ve

rt
im

e 
in

 
M

ay
 a

nd
 J

un
e.

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

83
.0

0
90

.0
0

86
.6

9
90

.0
0

90
.0

0
In

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
da

ys
 is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f d
el

ay
s 

w
ith

 
au

th
or

is
in

g 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

ba
nk

 h
ol

id
ay

F
P

00
1

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 3

0 
da

ys
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

M
C

98
.0

0
98

.0
0

99
.6

1
98

.0
0

98
.0

0
O

n 
T

ar
ge

t

LP
I 

(f
or

m
er

ly
 

B
V

12
)

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

9.
12

0.
71

0.
78

8.
75

9.
40

T
he

re
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

no
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 
m

on
th

, t
he

re
fo

re
 th

e 
ye

ar
 s

ta
rt

s 
as

 
A

M
B

E
R

C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 m
ea

su
re

)
M

S
n/

a
9,

91
4

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

C
al

ls
 to

 th
e 

co
nt

ac
t c

en
tr

e 
ha

ve
 fa

lle
n 

by
 

10
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 la
st

 m
on

th
. C

al
l 

vo
lu

m
es

 r
em

ai
n 

hi
gh

 b
ut

 o
ve

ra
ll 

ca
ll 

vo
lu

m
e 

ha
nd

le
d 

by
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
by

 1
0.

5%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 la

st
 

m
on

th
, t

hi
s 

is
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
co

un
ci

l 
ta

x 
bi

lli
ng

 a
nd

 m
at

ch
es

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
tr

en
ds

. 
C

al
ls

 to
 th

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tr
e 

an
d 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

sw
itc

hb
oa

rd
 b

ot
h 

fo
llo

w
 th

is
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

tr
en

d 
eq

ua
lly

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

 (
ac

tiv
ity

 m
ea

su
re

)
M

S
n/

a
4,

79
9

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

n/
a

C
al

l v
ol

um
e 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
sw

itc
hb

oa
rd

 
ha

s 
fa

lle
n 

by
 1

1%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 la

st
 

m
on

th
4

Page 16



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

at
 F

irs
t P

oi
nt

 o
f C

on
ta

ct
 a

ll 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
)

M
S

95
.0

0
85

.0
0

97
85

.0
0

85
.0

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
em

ai
ns

 a
bo

ve
 ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 is
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

to
 d

at
e

%
 o

f C
al

ls
 A

ns
w

er
ed

M
S

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

86
.0

0
20

.0
0

20
.0

0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 u

nd
er

 ta
rg

et
 th

is
 m

on
th

 
an

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

riv
en

 b
y 

su
st

ai
ne

d 
hi

gh
 c

al
l 

vo
lu

m
es

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

pe
ak

s 
of

 
ca

lls
 o

n 
th

re
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 d
ay

s 
th

is
 m

on
th

 
ca

ll 
vo

lu
m

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 9

00
 c

al
ls

 p
er

 d
ay

. 
T

hi
s 

is
 fa

r 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
ce

nt
re

s 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 h
an

dl
e 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
pe

ed
 o

f A
ns

w
er

 (
se

co
nd

s)
M

S
20

 
(a

ve
)

20
.0

0
34

.0
0

20
.0

0
20

.0
0

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
em

ai
ns

 u
nd

er
 ta

rg
et

 th
is

 
m

on
th

 a
nd

 is
 b

ei
ng

 d
riv

en
 b

y 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

hi
gh

 c
al

l v
ol

um
es

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

pe
ak

s 
of

 c
al

ls
 o

n 
th

re
e 

se
pa

ra
te

 d
ay

s 
th

is
 

m
on

th
 c

al
l v

ol
um

e 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 9

00
 c

al
ls

 
pe

r 
da

y.
 T

hi
s 

is
 fa

r 
in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ac

t c
en

tr
es

 c
ap

ac
ity

 to
 h

an
dl

e 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 

M
C

20
0

34
de

cr
ea

si
ng

A
 d

el
ay

 in
 th

e 
m

an
uf

ac
tu

rin
g 

of
 th

e 
br

ow
n 

bi
ns

 h
as

 c
au

se
d 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
kn

oc
k 

on
 e

ffe
ct

 w
as

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

di
d 

no
t 

re
ce

iv
e 

th
em

 in
 ti

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f t

he
 

gr
ee

n 
w

as
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
ns

.  
C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 w

er
e 

- 
:  

3 
ab

ou
t p

ar
ki

ng
 

m
ac

hi
ne

s 
no

t g
iv

in
g 

ch
an

ge
, 1

 a
bo

ut
 fl

y 
tip

pi
ng

 n
ot

 c
ol

le
ct

ed
,1

 la
ck

 o
f i

nf
o 

re
 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 r

ec
yc

lin
g 

se
rv

ic
e,

2 
ab

ou
t b

in
s 

no
t b

ei
ng

 p
la

ce
d 

ba
ck

 p
ro

pe
rly

, 2
 a

bo
ut

 
m

is
se

d 
co

lle
ct

io
ns

, 1
9 

ab
ou

t b
ro

w
n 

bi
ns

 
no

t b
ei

ng
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 ti

m
e 

fo
r 

ga
rd

en
 

w
as

te
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n,
 3

 o
bj

ec
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
,  

1 
ab

ou
t p

ro
ce

du
re

 
at

 p
la

nn
in

g 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 a
nd

 2
 a

bo
ut

 
B

en
ef

its
 c

la
im

s.

5

Page 17



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

M
C

60
9

in
cr

ea
si

ng

C
om

pl
im

en
ts

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
w

er
e 

- 
1 

ab
ou

t 
G

ym
na

st
ic

s 
C

ou
rs

e 
or

ga
ni

se
d 

by
 S

po
rt

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

1 
ab

ou
t t

he
 S

tr
ee

t 
C

le
an

si
ng

 T
ea

m
,  

1 
ab

ou
t e

xc
el

le
nt

 
se

rv
ic

e 
fr

om
 W

as
te

 a
nd

 R
ec

yc
lin

g 
T

ea
m

s 
an

d 
6 

ab
ou

t s
er

vi
ce

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

en
tr

e 
T

ea
m

L
eg

al
, E

q
u

al
it

ie
s 

an
d

 D
em

o
cr

at
ic

 S
er

vi
ce

s

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
C

or
po

ra
te

ly
 r

ep
or

te
d 

P
I's

 fo
r 

th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n

N
I 1

57
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

aj
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
M

C
83

.0
0

85
.0

0
66

.6
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

A
pr

il 
sa

w
 6

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
M

aj
or

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 is
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
la

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 
20

09
/1

0 
on

ly
 s

aw
 3

 m
aj

or
 a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
 

be
in

g 
de

te
rm

in
ed

.  
T

he
 tw

o 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

th
at

 w
en

t o
ut

 o
f t

im
e 

re
la

te
d 

to
; 

A
lv

ec
hu

rc
h 

S
ch

oo
l s

ite
 w

he
re

 th
e 

S
10

6 
ag

re
em

en
t w

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

1 
D

ay
 la

te
 a

nd
 

th
e 

A
ld

i F
oo

ds
to

re
. I

n 
th

is
 in

st
an

ce
 th

er
e 

w
as

 a
 s

hi
ft 

in
 th

e 
po

lic
y 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

ns
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 o
f t

he
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n 
of

 P
P

S
4 

an
d 

th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
th

e 
su

bm
is

si
on

 o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.

N
I 1

57
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
M

C
87

.8
0

85
.0

0
88

.3
0

85
.0

0
85

.0
0

In
 th

e 
la

st
 Q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 2
00

9/
10

 m
in

or
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 r
et

ur
ne

d 
to

 a
 m

or
e 

he
al

th
y 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 1

5 
– 

17
 a

nd
 A

pr
il 

re
fle

ct
s 

th
is

.  
O

f t
he

 tw
o 

ou
t o

f t
im

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

on
e 

re
la

te
d 

to
 O

ak
la

nd
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l w

hi
ch

 
w

as
 c

al
le

d 
to

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

s 
w

as
 B

er
ry

 
La

ne
 w

in
d 

tu
rb

in
e 

pr
op

os
al

, w
hi

ch
 w

as
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

 r
ef

us
ed

.

6

Page 18



R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n

A
p

ri
l T

ar
g

et
A

p
ri

l A
ct

u
al

T
ar

g
et

 
&

T
re

n
d

T
ar

g
et

E
st

. O
u

tt
u

rn

E
st

. 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 
T

ar
g

et
 

&
T

re
n

d

C
o

m
m

en
ts

20
01

0/
11

��
��

��
��

��
		�


�
F

re
q

. o
f 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

�
�


��

�

��
��

�

N
I 1

57
 

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 o

th
er

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
M

C
91

.0
0

90
.0

0
94

.3
0

90
.0

0
90

.0
0

A
pr

il 
(5

2)
 s

aw
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 o
th

er
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
 fi

gu
re

 
of

 M
ar

ch
(6

2)
.  

O
ut

 o
f t

im
e 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 
w

er
e 

lim
ite

d 
to

 th
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

de
r 

ca
te

go
ry

, 
of

 th
es

e 
3 

on
e 

w
as

 c
al

le
d 

to
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 (
1 

P
ou

nd
 L

an
e 

F
ra

nk
le

y 
09

/0
92

0)
 w

hi
ls

t 2
5 

S
to

ur
br

id
ge

 R
oa

d 
H

ag
le

y 
w

as
 d

ue
 to

 la
te

 
ne

ig
hb

ou
r 

no
tif

ic
at

io
n 

(1
0/

00
66

) 
an

d 
2 

C
hu

rc
h 

La
ne

 w
as

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r 
a 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

ar
ea

 s
et

tin
g 

ad
ve

rt
 

(0
9/

07
12

) 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

C
or

po
ra

te
ly

 r
ep

or
te

d 
P

I's
 fo

r 
th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
re

 o
nl

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

R
eg

u
la

to
ry

 S
er

vi
ce

s

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
C

or
po

ra
te

ly
 r

ep
or

te
d 

P
I's

 fo
r 

th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t

P
o

lic
y,

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s

C
or

po
ra

te
ly

 r
ep

or
te

d 
P

I's
 fo

r 
th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
re

 o
nl

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

B
u

si
n

es
s 

Tr
an

sf
o

rm
at

io
n

T
he

re
 a

re
 n

o 
C

or
po

ra
te

ly
 r

ep
or

te
d 

P
I's

 fo
r 

th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t

7

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

T
ar

ge
t

47
.5

5
47

.8
4

47
.6

0
48

.3
8

47
.1

2
47

.6
8

47
.0

9
48

.5
7

53
.0

4
46

.9
8

44
.2

3
48

.2
1

A
ct

ua
l

52
.8

9

2,
05

8.
94

38
,9

29

T
ar

ge
t

44
.0

9
47

.8
9

46
.5

6
45

.9
3

44
.7

0
45

.3
3

42
.7

7
38

.6
1

26
.0

3
32

.3
4

29
.0

3
36

.4
1

A
ct

ua
l

40
.2

7

1,
38

8.
04

0

3,
44

7.
12

0

T
ar

ge
t

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

12
5

A
ct

ua
l

16
7

T
ar

ge
t

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

12
6,

87
5

A
ct

ua
l

12
5,

92
9

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

S
er

vi
ce

s

T
ar

ge
t

43
3

44
7

43
3

44
7

44
7

43
3

44
7

43
3

44
7

44
7

40
4

44
7

A
ct

ua
l

48
5

T
ar

ge
t

30
31

30
31

31
30

30
31

31
31

28
31

A
ct

ua
l

25

T
ar

ge
t

88
91

92
96

97
90

87
78

78
80

74
87

A
ct

ua
l

10
7

T
ar

ge
t

4
5

4
5

5
4

5
4

5
5

4
5

A
ct

ua
l

6

T
ar

ge
t

55
56

55
56

56
55

56
55

56
56

51
56

A
ct

ua
l

47

T
ar

ge
t

74
77

59
93

74
81

74
76

59
63

70
90

A
ct

ua
l

64

T
ar

ge
t

16
0

M

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s

T
ot

al
 c

rim
es

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
 c

rim
es

 

S
S

ho
pm

ob
ili

ty
 C

en
tr

e 
U

sa
ge

MM
C

M
CC

M
C

M
C C

M

R
ef

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
F

re
q

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 d

om
es

tic
 b

ur
gl

ar
ie

s 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

ob
be

rie
s 

T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 v

io
le

nt
 c

rim
es

20
10

/1
1 

M
o

n
th

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

ig
u

re
s

D
ec

. 
Ja

n.
 

F
eb

.
Ju

l.

C
um

 o
r 

S
na

p
M

ar
. 

A
ug

.
S

ep
. 

O
ct

. 
N

ov
. 

A
pr

. 
M

ay
.

Ju
n.

N
I 1

91
R

es
id

ua
l H

ou
se

ho
ld

 w
as

te
 p

er
 

ho
us

eh
ol

d 
(k

g)

N
I 1

92
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 r
e-

us
ed

, r
ec

yc
le

d 
an

d 
co

m
po

st
ed

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

M
N

um
be

r 
of

 m
is

se
d 

w
as

te
 

co
lle

ct
io

ns

T
ow

n 
C

en
tr

e 
C

ar
 P

ar
k 

U
sa

ge

C

M
S

Page 21



A
ct

ua
l

14
1

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

T
ar

ge
t

18

A
ct

ua
l

20

T
ar

ge
t

12

A
ct

ua
l

9

T
ar

ge
t

6

A
ct

ua
l

11

T
ar

ge
t

60
7

A
ct

ua
l

61
2

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

31
5

T
ar

ge
t

98
.5

0%

A
ct

ua
l

99
.9

4%

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

31
5

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

60

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

33

L
ei

su
re

 &
 C

u
lt

u
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s 

T
ar

ge
t

16
19

18
21

25
16

18
14

5
5

12
16

A
ct

ua
l

30

T
ar

ge
t

56
69

82
96

12
4

52
69

32
30

20
42

48

A
ct

ua
l

64

T
ar

ge
t

91
56

8
3,

66
0

1,
22

2
15

,0
80

84
7

85
9

3,
02

5
12

9
63

11
1

95
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

10
0

T
ar

ge
t

34
,0

56
71

,7
65

10
6,

08
6

14
0,

64
9

17
1,

75
4

20
6,

56
7

24
2,

48
9

27
8,

11
9

30
4,

18
3

34
0,

94
9

37
9,

52
0

41
9,

92
3

M

N
um

be
rs

 o
f u

se
rs

 a
tte

nd
in

g 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 
M

C

N
um

be
r 

of
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
at

 a
rt

s 
ev

en
ts

D
ol

ph
in

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge

S
S

ho
pm

ob
ili

ty
 C

en
tr

e 
U

sa
ge

C
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t u

sa
ge

s

M

C
M

C
M

N
um

be
r 

of
 L

ife
lin

e 
ca

lls
 r

ec
ei

ve
d

%
ag

e 
of

 L
ife

lin
e 

ca
lls

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 

w
ith

in
 1

 m
in

ut
e

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

 -
 le

av
er

s

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

 -
 n

et
 g

ai
n

P
riv

at
e 

di
sp

er
se

d 
Li

fe
lin

e 
cu

st
om

er
 

nu
m

be
rs

 -
 to

ta
l p

riv
at

e 
di

sp
er

sa
ls

  

M
P

riv
at

e 
di

sp
er

se
d 

Li
fe

lin
e 

cu
st

om
er

 
nu

m
be

rs
 -

 n
ew

 c
us

to
m

er
s

S

M
S

M
S

M
S

M
S

M
S

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

C
T

V
 e

vi
de

nt
ia

l 
se

iz
ur

es
M

%
ag

e 
of

 C
C

T
V

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g

C

N
um

be
r 

of
 C

C
T

V
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

M
C C C

M

C
N

um
be

r 
of

 lo
ca

lly
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 
di

ve
rs

io
na

ry
 s

es
si

on
s

M

Page 22



A
ct

ua
l

34
,3

01
T

ar
ge

t
1,

96
6

2,
51

4
2,

84
9

2,
68

6
2,

35
1

1,
94

1
3,

06
4

3,
54

0
1,

17
1

1,
98

3
27

54
3,

78
1

A
ct

ua
l

2,
06

0

F
in

an
ce

 &
 R

es
o

u
rc

es
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t

T
ar

ge
t

12
.0

0
A

ct
ua

l
19

.6
1

21
,2

02
 

1,
08

1
T

ar
ge

t
90

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

86
.6

9

T
ar

ge
t

98
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

99
.6

1

T
ar

ge
t

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
79

0.
79

0.
78

A
ct

ua
l

0.
78

C
u

st
o

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

9,
91

4

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

4,
79

9

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

97
.0

0
T

ar
ge

t
85

.0
0

A
ct

ua
l

86
.0

0

T
ar

ge
t

20

A
ct

ua
l

34

T
ar

ge
t

A
ct

ua
l

34
T

ar
ge

t

A
ct

ua
l

9

P
la

n
n

in
g

 &
 R

eg
en

er
at

io
n

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

66
.6

0 4 6

T
ar

ge
t

85
.0

0

M

S
po

rt
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t u

sa
ge

s

D
ol

ph
in

 C
en

tr
e 

U
sa

ge

CC

M

N
I 1

81
T

im
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 p
ro

ce
ss

 H
B

/C
T

 
be

ne
fit

 n
ew

 c
la

im
s 

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
ev

en
ts

M
C

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 

10
 d

ay
s 

of
 r

ec
ei

pt
M

C

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 in

vo
ic

es
 p

ai
d 

w
ith

in
 

30
 d

ay
s 

of
 r

ec
ei

pt
M

C

T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 n
um

be
r 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 

da
ys

 lo
st

 d
ue

 to
 s

ic
kn

es
s.

M
C

M
S

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
es

 C
us

to
m

er
 

C
on

ta
ct

 C
en

tr
e 

(a
ct

iv
ity

 m
ea

su
re

)

M
S

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

at
 F

irs
t P

oi
nt

 o
f C

on
ta

ct
 

al
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

(p
er

ce
nt

ag
e)

M
on

th
ly

 C
al

l V
ol

um
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

S
w

itc
hb

oa
rd

 (
ac

tiv
ity

 m
ea

su
re

)
M

S

%
 o

f C
al

ls
 A

ns
w

er
ed

M
S

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
pe

ed
 o

f A
ns

w
er

 
(s

ec
on

ds
)

M
S

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
  

M
C

N
um

be
r 

of
 c

om
pl

im
en

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

(C
ou

nc
il 

w
id

e)
 

M
C

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 m
aj

or
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

de
no

m
in

at
or

MM
C

nu
m

er
at

or

C

Page 23



A
ct

ua
l

88
.2

3 15 17

T
ar

ge
t

90
.0

0

A
ct

ua
l

94
.3

0 49 52

H
o

u
si

n
g

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

C
or

po
ra

te
ly

 r
ep

or
te

d 
P

I's
 fo

r 
th

is
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t a
re

 o
nl

y 
re

po
rt

ed
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

P
o

lic
y,

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n

d
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s
C

or
po

ra
te

ly
 r

ep
or

te
d 

P
I's

 fo
r 

th
is

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t a

re
 o

nl
y 

re
po

rt
ed

 q
ua

rt
er

ly

N
I1

57
nu

m
er

at
or

nu
m

er
at

or

de
no

m
in

at
or

N
I1

57
T

he
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 o
th

er
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

de
no

m
in

at
or

M
C

T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 m

in
or

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks

M
C

Page 24



  

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 
 

14TH JUNE 2010 
 

 
SHARED SERVICES 
 
Responsible Portfolio Holder  Roger Hollingworth, Leader of the 

Council 
Responsible Head of Service Kevin Dicks, Chief Executive 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY 
 
1.1 To update the Board on the Shared Services project. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Board: 
 

i. Considers the project highlight report attached and makes any 
recommendations to Cabinet it thinks appropriate. 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  The UK’s financial position has changed dramatically in the last twelve 

months.  Every public sector organisation is going to need to make 
significant savings over the next Parliament, in order to cope with the 
expected reductions in Central Government Grant whilst at the same time 
retain and improve services. 

 
3.2 The District Council is comparatively well placed to respond to this agenda, 

through its shared services project with Redditch Borough Council and the 
Worcestershire Enhanced Two Tier (WETT) project. 

 
Shared Services 

 
3.3 Shared Services will see Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough 

Council share services, both front office and back office, whilst remaining 
separate organisations.  The project has proceeded as planned with a 
single Chief Executive and a number of “quick wins” like Elections and 
Community Safety.  A single management team for both Councils has now 
been appointed.  A project highlight report, supported by a risk register and 
issues log, is produced each month for the Shared Services Board, made of 
Members from both Councils.  The latest highlight report is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 25



 

WETT Programme 
 
3.4 Regulatory Services went live on 01 June 2010 and is hosted by 

Bromsgrove and Redditch Councils.   
  
4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The single management team will deliver a saving of £246,000 in 

2010/2011.  In addition savings from the joint arrangements with Redditch 
for CCTV, Lifeline and ICT will generate £120k from 2010/11.   

 
4.2 The anticipated savings from the WETT programme are £150,000 in 

2011/12.   
 
4.3 It is anticipated that once the single management team is in place further 

reviews of joint working arrangements will be undertaken to generate 
additional savings and capacity to support the Council over the financial 
plan period.  
 

5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 Every shared service will have legal implications, particularly, if we are not 

the host authority.  Each shared service whether with Redditch or with one 
of the other councils in Worcestershire will be supported by a detailed 
service level agreement (a form of contract). 

 
6. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
6.1  Shared Services and WETT contribute to the Council Objective: 

Improvement and the priority: Value for Money. 
 
7. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
 
7.1 The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
  

• Non delivery of savings. 
• Non delivery of service improvements.   
  

7.2    These risks are being managed as follows:  
  

Risk Register: Shared Services.  
Key Objective Ref No: Separate Risk Register 
Key Objective:  Separate Risk Register 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

8. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 It is important to remember that while there is bound to be an emphasis on 

making savings our expectation is that each shared service will also seek to 
improve services to the customer.  This will be achieved using techniques 
like lean systems, customer first training, customer services accreditation 
and the use of technology. 

 
9. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None. 
 
10. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 The whole report is concerned with value for money. 
 
11. CLIMATE CHANGE AND CARBON IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The report is not directly concerned with climate change, but each new 

shared service will be expected to consider how to contribute to reducing 
CO2 emissions.  The expectation is that each merged service will have one 
service business plan that includes a section on climate change. 

 
12. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
  
 Please include the following table and spell out any particular implications in 

the relevant box. If there are no implications under a particular heading, 
please state ’None’:- 

 
Procurement Issues: See point about SLAs for each service. 
 
Personnel: The single management team and shared services in 
general will have significant HR issues and we will need to ensure 
sufficient capacity for respond to this. 
 
Governance/Performance Management: See previous point about 
SLAs. 
 
Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 
1998: The Community Safety service is one of the shared services. 
Policy: None. 
 
Biodiversity: None.  
 

 
13. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

No. 

Page 27



 

Chief Executive 
 

Yes. 

Executive Director – Regeneration, Planning 
and Housing 
 

No. 

Executive Director – Finance and Resources 
 

No. 

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive No. 
Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

No. 

Head of Service 
 

No. 

Head of Financial Services 
  

No. 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

No. 

Head of Organisational Development & HR 
 

No. 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No. 

 
14. WARDS AFFECTED 
 

All.   
 
15. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 – Shared Services Highlight report  
 
16. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Not applicable. 
 
CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Name:   Kevin Dicks  
E Mail:  k.dicks@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:       (01527) 881484 

Page 28



Appendix 1 

Highlight Report         
 

Project:  Shared Services / Transformation Project 

Calendar Week 
ending:  

4/6/10 Report prepared by: K Dicks 

Status: 
Red/Amber/Green  

Green % Complete:  12% 

Project Start 1/8/09 Projected 
Completion 

1/1/13 

Summary position: 

The main elements to this project and updates are as follows: 

• Elections – up and running.  

• Community Safety – up and running. 

• IT – since the last highlight report key sub projects have gone live including the 
first phase of the new helpdesk system and the email & web filtering devices. The 
helpdesk will now be configured to enable improved management of calls logged 
and for Redditch to migrate to it before their existing system expires in September. 
Focus has now begun on the next major sub project which is the start of 
virtualization of the computer servers at both sites and migration of the email & 
calendar systems into one environment. Consultation on the proposed structure 
has been completed – recruitment to the managers post has been unsuccessful so 
we will now have to move to external recruitment. Majority of staff slotted in but 
there are a few gaps which will be recruited to.        

• CCTV / Lifeline – the CCTV/Lifeline service transferred to Redditch on 4th January 
2010, with 21 staff transferring into the direct employment of Redditch Borough 
Council. Staff consultation on the proposed structure extended in order to ensure 
robust consultation with all staff – this has now ended. Manager and Team 
Leaders have been appointed. Notice of risk of redundancy served and requests 
for Voluntary Redundancy considered and agreed which should mean remaining 
staff can be slotted in. Service will be transferred to RBC week commencing 7th 
June. All other work progressing in accordance with timescales. 

• Economic Development (being led by Wyre Forest). North Worcestershire 
Economic Strategy and approach endorsed by Shared Services Board and Wyre 
Forest Cabinet on 20th April. Proposed that Wyre Forest lead. Will now go to 
Cabinet / Councils at all three North Worcestershire districts and more detailed 
business case developed. 

• Single Management Team – recruitment to Heads of Service posts completed 18th 
January. Unsuccessful candidates have left the Council. Head of Planning and 
Regeneration and Head of Customer Services appointed. New structure formally 
came into place on 20th April but new appointees agreed to take up functions 

Page 29



Appendix 1 

earlier in order to make transition easier. Head of Customer Services formally 
takes up post on 5th July (last remaining post). 

• Transformation – discussions have been held with the WMIEP over support they 
could provide to the Transformation Agenda – including a site visit to Warwick 
District Council and Staffordshire Moorlands and High Peak Borough. A further 3 
days were spent on systems thinking (facilitated by WMIEP) which included 
spending time within service departments in both councils and with partners to put 
the theory into practice. This will be used to work up the exact details Shared 
Services / Transformation Programme – this will be presented to the Shared 
Services Board at end of June. 

 

Work continues for the HR team on reviewing the terms and conditions of employment 
(between the two Councils) and formulating proposals to harmonise them. This is 
scheduled for completion in the Autumn. SMT and Unions are involved throughout the 
process.  

 

WETT programme continuing – detailed business cases for Internal Audit, Property and 
Regulatory Services have been agreed. Bromsgrove and Redditch will be host authority 
for Regulatory Services. Head of Service for Regulatory Service appointed by Joint 
Appointments Committee. Statement of Partner Requirements (service standards) 
completed. All staff TUPE’s to Bromsgrove District Council on 1st June 2010 and the 
service is now live with the legal agreement signed by all partners. Kevin Dicks chairs the 
WETT Regulatory Services Programme Board.  

 

Review of cost sharing principles for procurement, payroll, elections and community 
safety completed. 

Key Tasks for next month Measure of Success 
• Progression of implementation for 

4 approved business cases in 
accordance with timescales 

• Projects progressing 

• Further work on the development 
of the business case for North 
Worcestershire Economic 
Development Shared Service 

• Business case progressing in accordance 
with timescales 

• Risk register and mitigating actions 
to be reviewed 

• Risk Register reviewed 

• Continued work on review of 
Terms and Conditions 

• Work continuing 

• Development of shared services / 
transformation programme 

• Draft Shared Services / Transformation 
programme developed 

Risks, issues and concerns Mitigating Action 

Page 30



Appendix 1 

For full list of risks and mitigating 
action see separate risk log 

Main risks are outlined in feasibility study and 
risk register (including mitigating actions) will be 
continually reviewed over the coming months. 
One risk, that of political buy in has increased. 
See report. 

Financial Update 

Within budget – detailed financial monitoring to be reported to next Shared Services 
Board. 

 

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14th June 2010  
 

 

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD PROPOSED WORK PROGRAMME 
 
Responsible Member  Councillor – Kit Taylor, Performance 

Management Board Chairman 
Relevant Head of Service Hugh Bennett  - Director of Policy, 

Performance and Partnerships 
Non-Key Decision  
 
1.  SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1   This report sets out the agreed work programme for 2010/11. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1   It is recommended that: 
 

i. The Board considers the programme. 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Board now has an established programme for work, which links to the 

integrated financial/performance management cycle operated by the 
Council.  This cycle will produce the usual run of reports, but the Board has 
an opportunity to consider including additional reports on areas it wishes to 
focus on. 

 
4. KEY ISSUES 
 
4.1 Comprehensive Area Assessment, the regulatory framework for local 

government has just been abolished.  The Board may wish to reconsider the 
programme the light of this recent change. 

 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The proposed new timetable links to the financial planning cycle. 

 
6. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1   No legal implications to the report. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 33



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14th June 2010  
 

 

7. POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 Comprehensive Area Assessment, the regulatory framework for local 

government has just been abolished.  The Board may wish to reconsider the 
programme the light of this recent change. 

 
8. COUNCIL OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1  The Board’s programme applies to all the Council’s objectives. 
  
9. RISK MANAGEMENT INCLUDING HEALTH & SAFETY 

CONSIDERATIONS 
  
5.1 The Board has previously expressed an interest in risk management.  This 

falls under the remit of the Audit Board; however, PMB can make 
recommendations to this Board or Cabinet on issues around risk 
management identified through its work. 

 
10. CUSTOMER IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 None arising directly from this report, but the work programme should have 

due regard to performance on customer service. 
 
11. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 None arising directly from this report, but the work programme should have 

due regard to performance on equalities and diversity. 
 
12. VALUE FOR MONEY IMPLICATIONS, PROCUREMENT AND ASSET 

MANAGEMENT 
 
12.1 The Board will receive customer complaints data during 2010/11 as part of 

the quarterly integrated financial and performance reports. 
 
13. CLIMATE CHANGE, CARBON IMPLICATIONS AND BIODIVERSITY 
 
13.1  None for the purpose of this report. 
 
14. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 
  
14.1 None for the purpose of this report. 
 
 

Page 34



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14th June 2010  
 

 

15. GOVERNANCE/PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
  
15.1 The work programme forms part of the Council’s governance/performance 

management framework. 
 
16. COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS INCLUDING SECTION 17 OF 

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998 
  
16.1 The performance indicator report includes crime indicators. 
 
17. HEALTH INEQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
  
17.1 None directly from this report. 
 
18. LESSONS LEARNT 
 
18.1 The Board have requested a lessons learnt report on the new waste 

recycling arrangements, which will come to the Board in July. 
 
19. COMMUNITY AND STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 
 
19.1 None arising directly from this report, however, the performance indicators 

are based on the Council’s priorities, which in turn are based on community 
engagement feedback. 

 
20. OTHERS CONSULTED ON THE REPORT 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 

Via e-mail and at 
PMB 

Chief Executive 
 

Via e-mail 

Executive Director (S151 Officer) 
 

Via e-mail 

Executive Director – Leisure, Cultural, 
Environmental and Community Services 
 

Via e-mail 

Executive Director – Planning & Regeneration, 
Regulatory and Housing Services  
 

Via e-mail 

Director of Policy, Performance and 
Partnerships 
 

Yes 

Head of Service Via e-mail 

Page 35



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

 14th June 2010  
 

 

 
Head of Resources  
  

Via e-mail 

Head of Legal, Equalities & Democratic 
Services 
 

Via e-mail 

Corporate Procurement Team 
 

No 

 
21. WARDS AFFECTED 
 
 All wards 
 
22. APPENDICES 
 
 Appendix 1 - PMB Proposed Work Programme 2010/11 
 
23. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

PMB Work Programme 2009/10 
 

24. KEY 
 
 None 
 
AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:  Hugh Bennett  
E Mail: h.bennett@bromsgrove.gov.uk 
Tel:  01527 881430 

Page 36



 

 

Appendix 1 
 

Performance Management Board Proposed Work Programme 2010/11 
 

Date Agenda Item 
 

Apr 10 Period 11 09/10 Performance Report (distributed only, no 
meeting) 
 
Period 11 09/10 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
DFG lean systems report (rolled forward to April to make 
room for training). 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report (rolled forward to April to 
make room for training). 
 
Staff Survey Results (if undertaken – now to be undertaken in 
2010/11). 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection 
Action Plan. (rolled forward to April to make room for training). 
 
Council Plan 2010-2013 (rolled forward to April to make room 
for training). 
 
PMB Work Programme 20010/2011 (rolled forward to April to 
make room for training). 
 

May 10 Period 12 09/10 Performance Report 
 
Period 12 09/10 Improvement  Plan Mark 4 progress Report 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Jun 10 Period 1 10/11 Performance Report 
 
Period 1 Improvement Plan 2009/2010 Mark 5 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Jul 10 Period 2 10/11 Performance Report 
 
Period 2 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5  

Page 37



 

 

 
Annual Financial and Performance Report 2009/2010. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Lessons Learnt Report – Waste Recycling 
 
Dolphin Centre Service Level Agreement  
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker (?) 
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Aug 10 No meeting. 
 

Sep 10 Period 4 10/11 performance report 
 
Period 4 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Council Plan 2010/2013 Part 1 
 
Place Survey  
 
PMB Work Programme 
 

Oct 10 Period 5 10/11 Performance Report. 
 
Period 5 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Work Programme. 
 

Nov 10 Quarter 2 10/11 Integrated Finance & Performance Report. 
 
Period 6 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5progress Report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
Community Strategy Annual Report 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker  
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 
 

Page 38



 

 

Dec 10 Period 7 10/11 Performance Report. 
 
Period 7 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Jan 11 Period 8 10/11 Performance Report 
 
Period 8 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Feb 11 Quarter 3 10/11 Integrated Finance & Performance report. 
 
Period 9 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 5 progress report. 
 
Annual Artrix Performance Report. 
 
CAA Report. 
 
Quarterly Recommendation Tracker. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report. 
 
Performance Management Strategy Annual Update. 
 
PMB Work Programme. 
 

Mar 11 Period 10 10/11 Performance Report. 
 
Period 10 10/11 Improvement Plan Mark 4 progress report. 
 
Shared Services Highlight Report (rolled forward to April to 
make room for training). 
 
Housing Strategy Action Plan Update and Housing Inspection 
Action Plan. 
 
Council Plan 2011-2014  
 
PMB Work Programme 20011/2012. 
 

 
Unallocated Reports:- 

Page 39



 

 

 
Customer Access Strategy. 
 
Data Quality Strategy 6 Month Update  
 
Place Survey 
 
Staff Survey 
 

Page 40


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Performance Management Board held on 17th May 2010
	4 Performance Report (April 2010)
	Appendix 1 Performance Report
	Appendix 2 Performance Report
	Appendix 3 Performance Report

	5 Shared Services Highlight Report
	Shared Services Project - June 2010

	6 Work Programme

